


Regular Board Meeting Agenda  February 6, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 

There are no delegations. 

10. Waste Disposal 

A) Appointment of One Board Member to the Regional Landfill Liaison Committee  12-13 

11. Finance and Administration  

A)  2017 Budget Projection Update 14-15 

B)  Summary of Legal Invoices 16 

12. Waste Diversion 

A) Proposed Food and Organic Waste Framework – Province of Ontario  17-24 

13. Any Other Items 

A) 2018 EWSWA Board Meeting Dates       25 

14. By-Laws 

A) 01-2018 – Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board 
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 26 

15. Next Meeting 

Tuesday, March 6, 2018 

16. Adjournment 



Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Regular Board Meeting 

Minutes 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 07, 2017 
Time:  4:30PM  
Location: Essex County Civic and Education Centre 

360 Fairview Avenue West Essex – Meeting Room C 

Attendance: 

Board Members:   
Chair  Ron McDermott County of Essex 
  Hilda MacDonald County of Essex  
  Aldo DiCarlo County of Essex 
  Tom Bain (Ex-Officio) County of Essex 
  Bill Marra City of Windsor 
  Fred Francis City of Windsor 
  Ken Antaya County of Essex 
Vice Chair Ed Sleiman City of Windsor 
  Rino Bortolin City of Windsor 
Absent: Drew Dilkens (Ex-Officio) City of Windsor 
EWSWA Staff: Eli Maodus General Manager 
  Tom Marentette Manager of Waste Disposal 
  Kelly Cartier Executive Secretary 
  Cameron Wright Manager of Waste Diversion 
  Michelle Bishop Manager of Finance and Administration 
County of Essex Staff: Mary Brennan Director of Council Services / Clerk 
  Rob Maisonville County of Essex CAO 
City of Windsor Staff: Cindy Becker Financial Planning Administrator 
  Anne Marie Albidone Manager of Environmental Services 
  Natasha Couvillon Manger of Performance Measurement & 
   Financial Administration 
  Dwayne Dawson Executive Director of Operations 

1. Call to Order 

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:35 PM.  

 
1 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 2 of 9 

2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

The Chair called for any declarations of pecuniary interest and none were noted. He 
further expressed that should a conflict of a pecuniary nature or other arise at any time 
during the course of the meeting that it would be noted at that time. 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

A) October 3, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Moved By Tom Bain 
Seconded By Aldo DiCarlo 
THAT the Minutes from the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority regular 
meeting dated October 3, 2017 be approved and adopted. 

-Carried Unanimously 
44-2017 

4. Business Arising From the Minutes  

Resolution of 2017 Budget Approval Matter 

The Chair questioned when the 2017 Budget approval matter would be brought back to 
the Board for consideration. 

Mr. Bain responded that discussions are ongoing between the City of Windsor Mayor 
and himself as well as both City and County CAO’s. 

Mr. Bain requested that County CAO Mr. Maisonville provide an update. 

Mr. Maisonville noted that as of late Thursday, November 2, 2017 he questioned the 
City CAO for a status update and was informed that it was being brought forth to the 
City Mayor. He is awaiting their response. 

The Chair declared that he understands that discussions must take place but would like 
a decision made. He questioned if it will be brought to arbitration or if it can be brought 
back to the Board for further discussion. 

Mr. Bain responded that he hopes that there will be a resolution to the matter in time for 
the EWSWA Board meeting in December.  

Mr. Sleiman questioned if there is a higher body that the 2017 Proposed Budget could 
be brought to for a decision. 

 
2 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 3 of 9 

The General Manager noted that the budget approval process is outlined in the original 
agreement that created the EWSWA. He further noted that this process is still in its 
beginning stages as it pertains to the approval of the 2017 budget. 

Mr. Sleiman then questioned if there is an external body that could render a decision. 

The General Manager explained that if it was required the matter would be referred for 
determination pursuant to the terms of the Arbitrations Act of Ontario. He further 
explained that the arbitrator would be independent and not tied to a government 
agency. 

5. Correspondence  

Windsor Stars Ad re: Gold Box Recycling Initiative 

The General Manager noted this article is from the Windsor Star and dated October 18, 
2017. He further noted this was for the Board’s information 

6. Delegation  

There were no delegations present.  

7. Waste Disposal 

No matters discussed. 

8. Waste Diversion 

A) Waste Reduction Week October 16 – 22, 2017 Results 

The Manager of Waste Diversion explained that Waste Reduction Week was October 
16-22, 2017. He further explained that the EWSWA focused this year on using media 
and social media to promote Waste Reduction Week in Essex County. 

The Manager of Waste Diversion noted that the media coverage the EWSWA received 
was very positive and included a Windsor Star article about our Gold Star Recycling 
Program where the reporter witnessed first-hand EWSWA staff performing recycling box 
inspections.  

 
3 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 4 of 9 

Mr. Sleiman questioned a quote from a CTV News item on Page 22 of the Agenda 
Package where it says that Ontario generates nearly 12 million tonnes of waste per year 
while the Province warns that landfills could become full in 20 years. Further, the news 
item states that the Liberal government says its waste free strategy aims to divert 100% 
of waste away from landfills by creating a circular economy. 

The General Manager asserted that realistically there will always be a need for a means 
to dispose of garbage whether it is a landfill or incineration. He notes that the EWSWA’s 
landfill is estimated to last another 20-23 years. The provincial government is trying to 
get municipalities to think about the future. 

Mr. Sleiman noted that Essex County’s waste diversion rate is 36% and that it is not 
high enough. He believes the Authority needs a plan and suggests hiring a consultant. 

Mr. Antaya stated that he thought the coverage by the local press of Waste Reduction 
Week was well done. 

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Hilda McDonald 
THAT the Report Waste Reduction Week October 16 – 22, 2017 Results be 
accepted as information. 

-Carried Unanimously 
44-2017 

B) Extension of Electronics Recycling Agreement with Greentec International Inc. 
(From Supplementary Agenda) 

The Manager of Waste Diversion provided background on the EWSWA’s current 
electronics recycling program. He noted that the normal procedure would be to 
seek out a new contract through the RFP process as the current contract expires 
at the end of 2017. However, due to the uncertainty of the impending 
stewardship program and Provincial legislation, Administration felt it was in the 
best interest of the Authority to request an extension with the current service 
provider.  

The Manager of Waste Diversion advised the Board that through Administration’s 
discussions with other municipalities the price the EWSWA is currently receiving from 
Greentec International Inc. is significantly higher. He also advised the Board that 
Greentec International Inc.’s performance record is excellent. 

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Rino Bortolin 
THAT the Board approve a 2 year extension for the period of January 1, 2018 to 
December 31, 2019 of the electronics recycling contract with Greentec 

 
4 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 5 of 9 

International Inc. under the same terms and conditions as the existing contract 
including the price to be paid to the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority of 
$352/tonne. 

-Carried Unanimously 
45-2017 

9. Finance and Administration 

A) 2018 Budget Cover Report 

The General Manager explained that the approval process is different from years past 
due to the unresolved 2017 budget. He further explained that the current proposed 
objective is to approve the 2018 expenditure estimates to allow the Authority to continue 
delivering its programs without interruption. 

The General Manager also requested that the Board approve non-municipal revenue 
and fees that are charged to residents and ICI customers.  

He noted that the 2018 budget approval request does not include the fixed cost 
allocation to municipalities or the per tonne tipping fee as this will be discussed upon the 
resolution of the 2017 Budget. 

The General Manager noted that the 2018 Budget was reviewed and agreed to through 
consensus with the Technical Staff Committee (Authority, City, and County 
Representatives). He further noted that the Technical Staff Committee examined each 
line and page in the draft budget document and Authority staff explained and justified 
each line item in the budget document. 

The General Manager advised the Board that Administration is seeking an increase in 
tipping fees for Vines to $32.00/tonne in 2018 up from $31.00/tonne in 2017. He also 
noted that Administration is also suggesting an increase to the fee for refrigerants with 
compressors to $17/unit in 2018 from $15/unit in 2017. He further noted that this 
increase is simply passing on an increase that the Authority is charged by the contractor 
in the new contract. 

The General Manager indicated that page 26 of the Agenda Package provides a 
snapshot of the 2017 budget and projection as well as the 2018 budget. The 2017 and 
2018 budget documents include assessments and charges to municipalities at the 2016 
rates. He noted that the 2017 projection shows a surplus of $1.7 M which is attributed to 
higher than expected contaminated soil tonnage as well as favourable recycling prices. 
The 2017 budget estimated a deficit of ($1.0 M). He further noted that going into 2018 
the recycling prices are expected to fall and when episodic waste revenue is reduced 
there is a budgeted deficit of ($667,750) for 2018. 

 
5 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 6 of 9 

The General Manager explained that the chart at the top of page 27 in the Agenda 
Package details the shift between County Municipalities and the City of Windsor based 
on the 2016 Census versus the 2011 census. He noted there was a shift of fixed costs 
of $15,000 due to a shift in population. 

The General Manager indicated that page 28 of the Agenda Package refers to the 2017 
budgeted deficit versus the 2018 budget deficit which amounts to a $348,180 favourable 
variance. He noted that one major item that the Technical Staff Committee adjusted in 
the 2018 Budget was $800,000 of what is termed ICI Episodic Waste Revenue. He 
further noted that historically Administration has budgeted $100,000 however, when 
looking at the past 10 years the Technical Staff Committee felt an increase was 
warranted. 

The 2018 Budget includes no new programs or enhancements. The General Manager 
indicated that any increases in line item costs are solely related to new contracts with 
new pricing or consumer price index adjustments. 

The General Manager referred to the pie chart found on page 29 of the Agenda 
Package which provides a summary of 2018 Expenditures. The largest expenditure at 
46% is contracted pricing such as labour services/contracts. The second largest 
expenditure is fixed costs at 37%.  

Ms. MacDonald expressed concern that the increase in the tipping fees for Greenhouse 
Vines waste to $32/tonne from $31/tonne will lead to less companies bringing their 
vines to the EWSWA. 

The General Manager indicated that Administration does not feel that the increase from 
$31/tonne to $32/tonne will deter a company from bringing their vines to the EWSWA. 

Ms. MacDonald questioned what additional revenue the increase to the vines would 
create. 

The Manager of Finance and Administration noted that the increase would be 
approximately $10,000. 

Mr. Bortolin questioned recommendation 9, found on page 25 of the Agenda Package, 
that states ‘That any resultant surplus from 2017 operations be contributed to the Rate 
Stabilization Reserve. He questioned if this is one of the issues from the 2017 Budget. 

The General Manager explained that from an accounting perspective this is a normal 
procedure. Surpluses are contributed to reserves while deficits are funded by reserves. 
He noted that overall this is part of the discussion that is being had by the County and 
City CAO’s. 

Mr. Antaya was looking for clarification. He noted that there is a $2.7 M favourable 
swing between the 2017 budget and the 2017 projection and questioned if there is any 
repeated unbudgeted revenue anticipated for 2018. 

 
6 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 7 of 9 

The Manager of Finance and Administration referred to page 27 of the Agenda 
Package. She noted that unbudgeted revenue from contaminated soil, Malden Landfill 
and greenhouse vines equalled approximately $1.4 M in 2017. She further noted that 
historically Administration has attempted to project what ICI customers are going to 
deliver and have historically only included $100,000 of episodic waste. Through 
discussions at Technical Staff Committee meetings it has been decided to include 
$800,000 in projected unbudgeted revenue (up $700,000 from years past) for 2018.  

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Ken Antaya 
1. THAT the Board approve increasing tipping fees for Vines to $32/tonne from 

$31/tonne. 
2. THAT the Board approve increasing the per unit fee for the disposal of 

refrigerants to $17/unit from $15/unit. This pertains to items with compressors 
like refrigerators, dehumidifiers, freezers and A/C units. 

3. THAT the Board approve the 2018 Expenditure and Revenue budget 
estimate figures excluding the municipal Total Waste Management Fee and 
the municipal Fixed Cost Assessment. 

4. THAT the Board approve the Fee Schedule exclusive of the municipal Total 
Waste Management Fee. 

5. THAT the Board defer discussion at the EWSWA Board level concerning the 
2018 Total Waste Management Fee and Fixed Cost Assessment until some 
future date to be determined collaboratively by the City of Windsor and the 
County of Essex. 

6. THAT the Board defer presentation of the 2018 Budget to the councils of the 
City of Windsor and the County of Essex until some future date to be 
determined collaboratively by the City of Windsor and the County of Essex. 

7. THAT for 2017 and 2018 or for such time period as agreed to by the City of 
Windsor and the County of Essex, the City of Windsor and the 7 County of 
Essex municipalities be assessed a Total Waste Management Fee of 
$36.44/tonne being the fee that was in effect for 2016. 

8. THAT for 2017 and 2018, or for such time period as agreed to by the City of 
Windsor and the County of Essex, the City of Windsor and the 7 County of 
Essex municipalities be assessed a Fixed Cost Allocation population based 
on the 2016 total of $7,506,050 and allocated based on population per the 
2016 census. The 2016 allocation to municipalities was based on the 2011 
census. 

9. THAT any resultant surplus from 2017 operations be contributed to the Rate 
Stabilization Reserve. 

10. THAT any resultant surplus/ (deficit) for 2018 be contributed to or funded by 
the Rate Stabilization Reserve. 

-Carried Unanimously 
46-2017 

 

 
7 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 8 of 9 

B) Legal Invoices 

The Manager of Finance and Administration explained that the invoices are for general 
legal matters. 

Moved By Tom Bain 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
THAT the Legal Invoices be approved. 

-Carried Unanimously 
47-2017 

10. Any Other Items 

None 

11. By-Laws 

A) 05-2017 Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the EWSWA Board Meeting 
of November 7, 2017 

Moved By Ed Sleiman 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
THAT By-Law 05-2017, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Board 
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority be given three readings and be 
adopted this 7th day of November 2017. 

-Carried Unanimously 
48-2017 

12. Next Meeting 

The next Authority Meeting is Tuesday, December 5, 2017  

13. Adjournment 

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Bill Marra 
THAT the meeting stand adjourned at 5:05 PM 

 
8 of 26



November 7, 2017 EWSWA Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 

Page 9 of 9 

-Carried Unanimously 
49-2017 

All of which is respectfully submitted. 

Ron McDermott 
Chair 

Ilija Maodus 
General Manager 

 
9 of 26



 
10 of 26



 
11 of 26



Page 1 of 2 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Board Member to LLC for 2018.docx 

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

January 29, 2018 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Tom Marentette, Manager of Waste Disposal 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 06, 2018  

Subject: Appointment of One Board Member to the Regional Landfill Liaison 
Committee 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to request that the Authority appoint a Board Member, who is not 
from the Town of Essex, to the Landfill Liaison Committee for a 1 year term. 

As a matter of information the Board’s appointment for 2017 was Board Member Ed Sleiman. 

Background 

The Environmental Compliance Approval for the Regional Landfill stipulates the establishment 
and maintenance of a Landfill Liaison Committee (LLC). The purpose of the LLC is to review 
and make comment on any activities associated with the Essex-Windsor Regional Landfill Site, 
and shall include a review of Operations and Monitoring reports, review of complaints as well 
as the development and implementation plan for eventual end use and perpetual care.  

Membership of the LLC consists of 8 members as follows: 

1 Member from the EWSWA Board that is not a Municipal Council Member from the host 
municipality, namely the Town of Essex – Term of 1 year 

2 Members from the Municipal Council of the host municipality, namely the Town of Essex – 
Term of Council 

1 Member MOE Representative - Appointed by the District Manager of the Ministry of the 
Environment (may appoint an alternate as well) 

4 Members Resident representatives from the ‘Schedule A’ area as defined in the 
Compensation Policy – Term of 3 years 

 
12 of 26



Board Member to LLC Page 2 of 2 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Board Member to LLC for 2018.docx 

Discussion 

The LLC meets 4 times per year, usually in May, July, September and November.  Exact 
meeting dates are yet to be determined. 

Recommendation 

THAT the Board appoint one of its members, who is not a member of the Council of the Town 
of Essex, to the Landfill Liaison Committee for a term of 1 year. 

Submitted By 

 

Tom Marentette, Manager of Waste Disposal 

 
13 of 26



Page 1 of 2 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - 2017 Budget Projection Update January 23 2018.docx 

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

January 29, 2018 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 

Subject: 2017 Budget Projection Update 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board on 2017 projected revenue 
figures. 

Background 

The Board met on November 7, 2017 to deliberate the 2018 budget.  Included in the 2018 
budget document were 2017 revenue projections for the Sale of Recycling Material and ICI 
Tipping Fee Revenue for both Landfilled and Non-landfilled Material.  Also, included were 2017 
revenue projections for Municipally Delivered Refuse Revenue.  Those projection figures are 
required to be revised as described in the discussion section below. 

Discussion 

2017 Revenue Projections 

At the time of the preparation of the 2018 budget document certain estimates were made in 
order to derive projected 2017 revenue figures.  Now that 2017 has concluded more accurate 
figures can be calculated.   

ICI Landfilled Tip Fee Revenue – The majority of the additional revenue is derived from 18,500 
tonnes of un-projected greenhouse vines and waste material that historically have not been 
brought to the Regional Landfill for disposal.   Also, an additional 13,000 tonnes of ICI waste 
material and contaminated soil was delivered in December that was not included in the 
projection.   

Municipally Delivered Refuse Revenue – An additional 2,400 tonnes were received for 
disposal than originally projected (106,531 tonnes vs. 104,132 tonnes).  A significant portion of 
the additional waste was due to increased volumes from the City of Windsor as a result of 
flood debris received in October after the original projection estimates were completed.   

 
14 of 26



2017 Budget Projection Update Page 2 of 2 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - 2017 Budget Projection Update January 23 2018.docx 

ICI Non-Landfilled Tip Fee Revenue – An additional $97,800 in revenue was received.  
Approximately $91,500 of that revenue was received from one customer that historically has 
not delivered such a large volume for disposal and does not have a contract with the Authority.   

Sale of Recycled Material Revenue – An additional $131,950 in revenue was received 
($4,270,566 actual vs. $4,138,620 projected) due to higher than expected commodity pricing 
for cardboard and plastic materials.  Tonnage is 214 tonnes higher than projected (24,584 
actual tonnes vs. 24,370 projected tonnes).    

Summary 

2017 Additional Revenue 

ICI Landfilled Tip Fee Revenue (Net of Host Compensation)  $662,400 
Sale of Recycled Material $131,950 
ICI Non-Landfilled Tip Fee Revenue  $97,800 
Municipal Tip Fee Revenue (Net of Host Compensation) $66,800 
Total $958,950 

The additional revenue serves to increase the 2017 projected surplus.  A full year end report 
will be provided to the Board in May once the 2017 audit is completed by KPMG.  The final 
operating surplus figure will be reported at that time.     

Recommendation 

For the Board’s information. 

Submitted By 

 

Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration, CPA, CGA 

 
15 of 26



Page 1 of 1 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Summary of Legal Accounts - February 6, 2018 

Meeting.docx 

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

January 29, 2018 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 

Subject: Summary of Legal Accounts 

1. Bondy Riley Koski $603.42 

Regarding: Landfill # 2 
Invoice 15788 
Billing Period November – December 2017 
Invoice Date December 22, 2017 

2. Bondy Riley Koski $2039.68 

Regarding: Regional Landfill & Landfill # 3 
Invoice 15787 
Billing Period February – December 2017 
Invoice Date December 22, 2017 
 

That the Board authorize the payment of the legal accounts as summarized.  

Submitted By 

 
Ilija Maodus, General Manager 

 
16 of 26



Page 1 of 5 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of 

Ontario January 29, 2018.docx 

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

January 29, 2018 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 06, 2018 

Subject:  Proposed Food and Organic Waste Framework – Province of Ontario 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this report is to inform the Board of the Proposed Food and Organics Waste 
Framework (the Framework) as issued by the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 
(MOECC) on November 20, 2017. 

Due to the fact that the last Board meeting was on November 7, 2017, and no meetings were 
scheduled for December 2017 or January 2018, this is the first opportunity that Authority 
Administration has had to advise the Board of the Framework. 

BACKGROUND 

The Strategy for a Waste-Free Ontario: Building the Circular Economy commits the Ministry of 
the Environment and Climate Change to address food and organic waste. 

The proposed Framework supports the vision set out in the Strategy for a Waste-Free Ontario: 
Building the Circular Economy, where, waste is seen as a resource that can be recovered, 
reused and reintegrated to achieve a circular economy. It also supports the goals of a zero 
waste Ontario and zero greenhouse gas emissions from the waste sector. 

The proposed Framework includes two components: 

• Part A: Proposed Food and Organic Waste Action Plan which outlines strategic 
commitments to be taken by the province to address food and organic waste. 
 

• Part B: Proposed Food and Organic Waste Policy Statement which provides direction to 
provincial ministries, municipalities, producers, industrial, commercial and institutional 
sector, waste management sector and others to further the provincial interest in waste 
reduction and resource recovery as it relates to food and organic waste. 

 
17 of 26

https://www.ontario.ca/page/strategy-waste-free-ontario-building-circular-economy?_ga=1.92987677.1629893408.1467906712
https://www.ontario.ca/page/strategy-waste-free-ontario-building-circular-economy?_ga=1.92987677.1629893408.1467906712


Food and Organic Waste Framework Page 2 of 5 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of 
Ontario January 29, 2018.docx 

The Framework, if enacted, would compel and require not only certain municipalities to 
establish collection programs for food waste but would also compel and require multi-unit 
residential buildings and industrial, commercial and institutional facilities to do the 
same. 
 
Industrial, commercial and institutional facilities includes retail shopping establishments 
and complexes, office buildings, restaurants, hotels and motels, hospitals, educational 
institutions and manufacturing establishments who generate more than 300 kilograms of food 
and organic waste per week. 
 
Master Plan Recommendations 
 
The matter of kitchen food waste was the subject of recommendations by consultants engaged 
by the Authority in the past regarding options available to Essex-Windsor for increasing waste 
diversion in the region. 
 
The Board resolved, in the past, to not further examine the implementation of food waste 
collection and composting due to the fact that it was not “economically sound” to do so.  The 
Board further resolved to re-examine the subject should: 
 

(a) the cost become more reasonable 
(b) the Province mandate such a waste diversion initiative 
(c) funding opportunities become available 

DISCUSSION 

The Framework is contained within a 63 page document and as the title infers, the Framework 
is a proposal at this point in time and has yet to be enacted by the Province.  If it is enacted 
before the date of the upcoming Provincial election on June 7, 2018, municipalities that are 
compelled to comply with the Framework wouldn’t have to do so until sometime in 2022 at 
the earliest.  This is the date that the MOECC has put forth as the date at which they would 
implement a possible food waste disposal ban (this possible ban will be discussed later in this 
report). 

The Framework, if and when enacted, would compel the following municipalities in 
Essex-Windsor to implement a kitchen food waste collection program. 

The Framework speaks to both food and organic waste but all Essex-Windsor municipalities 
already provide organic waste collection (that is, leaf and other yard waste). 

The municipalities identified fall under the Framework based on population and population 
density criteria which will be discussed after the list of municipalities is presented: 

Windsor Shall provide Curbside collection to single-family dwellings in urban 
settlement areas within the municipality (this may mean that curbside collection will have to be 
offered to all single-family dwellings in Windsor since all of Windsor may be categorized as an 

 
18 of 26



Food and Organic Waste Framework Page 3 of 5 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of 
Ontario January 29, 2018.docx 

urban settlement area – see the definition of curbside collection and collection later in this 
report as well as the definition of urban settlement area) 

Amherstburg Shall provide Collection to single-family dwellings in urban settlement 
areas within the municipality (this may mean that the former Anderdon and Malden township 
areas may be excluded) 

LaSalle Shall provide Collection to single-family dwellings in urban settlement 
areas within the municipality (this may mean that collection will have to be offered to all single-
family dwellings in LaSalle since all of LaSalle may be categorized as an urban settlement 
area) 

Leamington Shall provide Collection to single-family dwellings in urban settlement 
areas within the municipality (this may mean that the former Mersea township area may be 
excluded)  

Tecumseh Shall provide Collection to single-family dwellings in urban settlement 
areas within the municipality (this may mean that certain areas of the town may be excluded 
such as the former Sandwich South township area) 

Essex, Kingsville and Lakeshore fell outside the scope of the criteria and would continue 
to collect food waste as part of the regular garbage collected curbside from residents and not 
as part of a separate collection program.  Therefore, residents would not be compelled to 
separate their food waste from their other household garbage. 

The criteria by which municipalities are identified by the Framework are as follows: 

Windsor 

Population is greater than 50,000 and the density is greater than 300 persons per square 
kilometre. 

Amherstburg, LaSalle, Leamington and Tecumseh 

Population is between 20,000-50,000 and density is greater than 100 persons per square 
kilometre. 

Essex, Kingsville and Lakeshore have populations exceeding 20,000 but their densities 
currently are less than 100 persons per square kilometre. 

Definitions of key words are: 

Curbside collection means sending a collection vehicle to single-family dwellings to pick up 
the food waste. 

Collection means that the municipality doesn’t need to attend to each single-family dwelling to 
collect the food waste but instead needs to provide a place (such as a new depot or existing 

 
19 of 26



Food and Organic Waste Framework Page 4 of 5 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of 
Ontario January 29, 2018.docx 

public works yard) to which the food waste can be delivered by residents, hence being 
collected by the municipality. 

Urban settlement area is a planning term and means an urban area that is a built-up area 
where development is concentrated and which has a mix of land uses. 

Food waste means the edible parts of plants and animals that are produced or harvested but 
that are not ultimately consumed. 

Organic waste means inedible parts of plants and animals, for example, leaf & yard waste, 
diapers and pet waste 

Possible food waste disposal ban 

The Framework document includes a timeline, part of which proposes the phasing in of a 
possible food waste disposal ban beginning in 2022.  This means that the MOECC would 
require those who operate disposal sites such as landfills, incinerators and transfer stations to 
monitor incoming garbage to ensure that loads do not contain food waste. 

Posting of the Framework on the Province’s Environmental Registry and public 
consultation 

The Framework was posted publically on the Environmental Registry with comments being 
able to be submitted to the MOECC by January 15, 2018.  Due to the fact that no Board 
meeting took place between the date of the posting in November 2017 and the comment 
closing date of January 15, 2018, the Authority’s General Manager prepared and submitted 
comments on behalf of the Board.  Those comments are attached to this report. 

Since no Board meetings took place in December 2017 and January 2018 Authority 
administration engaged in phone meetings with administration from Windsor, Amherstburg, 
LaSalle, Leamington and Tecumseh during November and December 2017.  The purpose of 
those phone meetings was to advise the municipalities of the proposed Framework and to 
discuss the potential impact on each of the municipalities.  Also, the General Manager’s 
comments to the Framework was shared with the municipal administrative representatives for 
their review and feedback before being submitted to the MOECC on January 15, 2018. 

Role of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority and local municipalities with regard to 
Food Waste 

Cost of collection of food waste 

As is the case currently with regular refuse collection and leaf and yard waste collection 
undertaken by Essex-Windsor municipalities, any required or voluntary collection of food waste 
would be the sole responsibility of each municipality and the cost of collection would form part 
of each municipality’s annual budget. This would include the cost to provide curbside collection 
or the cost incurred to establish and operate any depot to which residents would deliver their 
food waste. 

 
20 of 26



Food and Organic Waste Framework Page 5 of 5 January 29, 2018 

H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Reports\2018 Reports to the Board, LLC, TRC\REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of 
Ontario January 29, 2018.docx 

Cost of: (a) transfer of food waste to a processing facility and (b) processing of food 
waste 

If the Framework is enacted then discussions will need to take place amongst Essex-Windsor 
municipalities and the Authority as to the best means by which to manage the transfer and 
processing of food waste from the region. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the Board endorse the comments of the General Manager as submitted to the 
MOECC on behalf of the EWSWA in response to the posting of the Framework on the 
Environmental Registry and which comments were due on January 15, 2018. 
 

2. No other immediate action is required by the Authority Board at this time. 

Submitted By 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 

 

Attachment 

Comments dated January 2018 by the Authority’s General Manager on behalf of the EWSWA 
to Environmental Registry Posting 013-1814 

 

 
21 of 26



 
ESSEX-WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

 
COMMENTS TO ENVIRONMENTAL REGISTRY POSTING 013-1814 

 
FOOD AND ORGANIC WASTE FRAMEWORK 

 
JANUARY 15, 2018 

 
 
NOTE TO MOECC - These are staff comments only at this time due to the tight timeline and January 
15, 2018 deadline for comments in response to the posting on the Environmental Registry.  The Essex-
Windsor Solid Waste Authority Board does not have a meeting until February 2018.  It will be at that 
time that the Framework and these comments will be presented to them.  If there are any changes to 
these comments resulting from that February 2018 Board meeting they will be forwarded to you. 
 
Preface: It is understood and accepted that GHG emissions pose a problem to the environment and 
these emissions should be reduced.  One potential source of GHG emissions is food waste in 
landfills.  Food is only a potential source of GHG emissions if the methane generated by the landfill is 
not captured but instead is allowed to vent to the atmosphere.  Most modern landfills have gas 
collection systems which reduce or eliminate methane venting to the atmosphere.  Further, it is 
understood and accepted that it is best if food waste can be reduced or not generated at all and for 
that amount that does end up as waste that it be diverted from landfill.  That being said, the amount 
of food waste still going to landfill from those municipalities falling under the criteria contained within 
the Framework does not represent a significant quantity that would generate quantifiably 
measureable GHG emissions.  The MOECC and the Province are urged/encouraged to first target those 
large emitters of GHG and then aim to compel municipalities to comply with the Framework at a time 
further in the future. 
 
FINANCIAL BURDEN TO SMALLER MUNICIPALITIES 
 

1. Delay implementation for municipalities.  This is a financial burden to municipalities, therefore 
wait for municipalities to fully transition their blue box programs to full EPR as opposed to 
layering on another cost.  This comment does not imply that municipalities should be using 
possible, and not yet definite, future blue box cost savings to pay for costs associated with 
managing food waste.  Rather, waiting will provide municipalities the time to better plan and 
budget for costs associated with food waste collection, processing and initial capital costs. 
 

2. Budget impact to smaller municipalities.  Smaller municipalities would be more negatively 
impacted with the addition of collection and processing costs.  Although the framework calls for 
“collection” (meaning drop-off depots) and not “curbside collection” for smaller municipalities, 
this most likely is not practical as instructing residents to deliver food waste to a depot would 
probably be not well received and will result in low participation resulting in people “hiding” 
their food waste in their yard waste organics or coming up with other means by which to not 
participate. 

 
22 of 26



Comments on MOECC Food and Organic Waste Framework January 2018 

Page 2 of 3 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Waste Diversion\Organics - Compost, Yard Waste, Food Waste\Comments on 
Environmental Registry Posting 013-1814- Food and Organic Waste Framework - Jan 2018.docx 

 
3. Municipalities in southwest Ontario have stagnating tax bases and are still struggling or 

recovering from recent recession events.  Additional costs added to their budgets will 
exacerbate their current budget situations.  This is different than in the central part of the 
Province and in the nation’s capital region where the tax base can support increases in 
municipal budgets. 

 
4. Financial assistance for initial capital costs (e.g. carts) and operating costs would prove beneficial 

and may even encourage those municipalities not compelled to collect by the Framework to 
establish programs.  A good example of this was the blue box program when it was first 
initiated. Since funding was available, municipalities that were not compelled to have programs 
under the Regulation did establish programs since capital and operating funding eased the 
financial burden and made the delivery of the program more affordable. 

 
FOCUS ON OTHER SECTORS FIRST 
 

5. Focus on non-municipal sectors first.  Delay implementation for municipalities.  Implement the 
program in the ICI sector first since there is more food waste in this sector compared to the 
municipal sector.  Most of the large municipalities already have programs so the amount that 
would be diverted from the smaller Ontario municipalities would be negligible in the bigger 
picture. 
 

6. Focus on non-municipal sector first re: seeking to reduce GHG emissions.  The posting to the 
Environmental Registry states that in 2015 GHG emissions from the waste sector accounted for 
approximately 5% of Ontario’s total GHG emissions from all sources.  This would mean that 
municipal collected food waste represents an even smaller percentage.  While it is 
acknowledged that reducing GHG from all sectors is important it is suggested that the focus be 
on the larger non-municipal generators of GHG emissions.  Further, modern municipal landfills 
negate the effect of GHG emissions by capturing the methane generated and either converting 
it to an energy source, and if this is not possible, flaring it in order to negate the effects. 

 
MOST MUNCIPAL FOOD WASTE IS ALREADY BEING DIVERTED 
 

7. Most of the large volumes of municipal food waste is already out of the waste stream.  Since the 
largest of Ontario’s municipalities already have programs the amount available for diversion 
from the smaller municipalities is negligible when calculating GHG emissions. 
 

DISPOSAL BAN 
 

8. Disposal Ban – When considering all of the comments in this submission it would then be 
advisable to delay/defer any implementation of a municipal disposal ban.  A phasing in 
beginning in 2022 may not be practical/reasonable as it does not provide enough time for 
municipalities to: (a) amend or terminate current waste collection contracts since collection 
fleets will need to be modified in some municipal systems or applications to accept 2 streams in 
one vehicle from the current single stream; (b) either construct or arrange with another party 
for processing of their resident’s food waste 
 

 
23 of 26



Comments on MOECC Food and Organic Waste Framework January 2018 

Page 3 of 3 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Waste Diversion\Organics - Compost, Yard Waste, Food Waste\Comments on 
Environmental Registry Posting 013-1814- Food and Organic Waste Framework - Jan 2018.docx 

9. Disposal Ban – Undertake further study and analysis to examine the practical application of such 
a ban at curbside, municipal transfer stations and landfills. 

 
 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND END MARKETS 
 

10. Infrastructure and End Markets – Having the ICI sector implement Food Waste Reduction 
programs first will allow for the creation of the infrastructure and sustainable end markets for 
the product.  This can then allow for an easier entry for municipalities since it can then be 
analyzed whether or not further reduction of food waste is feasible/advisable depending on the 
availability of processing facilities and end markets. 
 

11. Infrastructure – Without additional processing facilities across the province, the processing 
facilities currently in existence can dictate a price due to lack of competition.  Municipalities will 
end up being price takers without a choice of options.  This will of course result in higher costs 
to municipalities. 

 
12. End Markets – Some municipalities currently are unable to find markets for all of the compost 

material that they create resulting from their yard waste organics collection programs.  Material 
is either sold at low prices or even given away resulting in a net cost to the 
municipalities.  Without sustainable end markets for the product created by any food waste 
process, further costs will need to be absorbed by municipal budgets. 

 
STAGED APPROACH FOR MUNICIPALITIES 
 

13. If, after considering all of these comments, the Ministry and Province wish to implement 
municipal Food Waste Collection Programs then implement them first among the high 
population/high density municipalities only (e.g. Windsor and London) and delay the 
implementation for the smaller municipalities until it can be shown that the additional food 
waste being added to the infrastructure and processing system in the province from the larger 
municipalities can be managed at reasonable cost.  The smaller municipalities can then learn 
from the larger municipalities and perhaps piggy back on to their method of managing their 
residents’ food waste. 

 
FOOD WASTE TO ENERGY 
 

14. Natural Gas and Renewable Natural Gas (RNG) – The Framework document talks about food and 
organic waste being a potential source of RNG.  This conversion process will be less attractive 
from a financial perspective as long as natural gas prices remain low as they have been 
historically (the past 8 or 9 years or so). 

 

 
Ilija (Eli) Maodus 
General Manager 
January 15, 2018 
emaodus@ewswa.org 
519-776-6441 x1226 

 
24 of 26

mailto:emaodus@ewswa.org


H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Administration\Schedules and MISC\2018\2018 Meeting Dates EWSWA FINAL.xlsx

Meeting Dates EWSWA Board 2018
                                     All Meetings are at the Essex Civic Centre

Regular Meeting Time: 4:30 PM
In-Camera Meeting Time: 4:15 PM (If Required)

Meeting Dates are Subject to Change or Cancellation

Month Meeting Date Room

January No Meeting N/A

February Tuesday, February 06, 2018 Meeting Room C

March Tuesday, March 06, 2018 Meeting Room C

April Wednesday, April 11, 2018 Meeting Room C

May Tuesday, May 01, 2018 Meeting Room C

June Tuesday, June 05, 2018 Meeting Room C

July Wednesday, July 11, 2018 Meeting Room C

August Wednesday, August 15, 2018 Meeting Room C

September Wednesday, September 12, 2018 Meeting Room C

October Tuesday, October 02, 2018 Meeting Room C

November Tuesday, November 06, 2018 Meeting Room C

December Tuesday, December 04, 2018 Meeting Room C

 
25 of 26



H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - By-Laws and Agreements\BY-LAWS\2018 By-Laws\1-2018 - Confirmatory By-Law.docx 
 

Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 

By-Law Number 1-2018 

Being A By-Law To Confirm The Proceedings Of The Meeting Of The 
Board Of The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority. 

Whereas by Agreement dated 18 May 1994, made between the Corporation of the County of Essex 
and the Corporation of the City of Windsor, the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (The Authority) 
was created as a joint board of management pursuant to Sections 207.5 and 209.19 of the Municipal 
Act, RSO 1990, Chapter M.45 and; 

Whereas Subsection 5.(3) of the Municipal Act, RSO 2001, Chapter 25, provides that the powers of a 
municipality shall be exercised by By-Law and; 

Whereas Section 1 of the Municipal Act RSO 1990, Chapter M 46 defines a municipality as including 
a board, commission or other local authority exercising any power with respect to municipal affairs or 
purposes and; 

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Authority at this meeting be confirmed 
and adopted by By-Law 

Now Therefore the members of the Authority enact as follows: 

1) The action of the members of the Authority in respect to each recommendation contained in 
the Report/Reports of the Committees and each motion and resolution passed and other 
action taken by the members of the Authority at this meeting is hereby adopted and confirmed 
as if all such proceedings were expressly set out in this by-law. 

2) The Chair and the proper officials of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all 
things necessary to give effect to the action of the members of the Authority referred to in the 
preceding section hereof. 

3) The Chair and the General Manager of the Authority are authorized and directed to execute all 
documents necessary in that behalf. 

 
Chair 

Ilija Maodus 
General Manager 

Read a First, Second and Third Time, Enacted and Passed This 6th 
Day of February, 2018. 

 
26 of 26


	Meeting Date: Tuesday, November 07, 2017
	Time:  4:30PM
	Location: Essex County Civic and Education Centre
	360 Fairview Avenue West Essex – Meeting Room C
	1. Call to Order
	2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
	3. Approval of the Minutes
	A) October 3, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes

	4. Business Arising From the Minutes
	5. Correspondence
	6. Delegation
	7. Waste Disposal
	8. Waste Diversion
	A) Waste Reduction Week October 16 – 22, 2017 Results
	B) Extension of Electronics Recycling Agreement with Greentec International Inc. (From Supplementary Agenda)

	9. Finance and Administration
	A) 2018 Budget Cover Report
	B) Legal Invoices

	10. Any Other Items
	11. By-Laws
	A) 05-2017 Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the EWSWA Board Meeting of November 7, 2017

	12. Next Meeting
	13. Adjournment
	REPORT - Board Member to LLC for 2018.pdf
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	Recommendation
	Submitted By


	REPORT - 2017 Budget Projection Update January 23 2018.pdf
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	Administrative Report
	Purpose
	Background
	Discussion
	2017 Revenue Projections
	Summary

	Recommendation
	Submitted By


	REPORT - Summary of Legal Accounts - February 6, 2018 Meeting.pdf
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	Administrative Report
	1. Bondy Riley Koski $603.42
	2. Bondy Riley Koski $2039.68
	Submitted By


	REPORT - Kitchen Food Waste and Organics Framework Province of Ontario January 29, 2018.pdf
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	Administrative Report
	PURPOSE
	DISCUSSION
	RECOMMENDATIONS


	2018 Meeting Dates EWSWA FINAL.pdf
	EWSWA BD Meetings

	1-2018 - Confirmatory By-Law.pdf
	Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
	By-Law Number 1-2018
	Being A By-Law To Confirm The Proceedings Of The Meeting Of The Board Of The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority.
	Read a First, Second and Third Time, Enacted and Passed This 6th Day of February, 2018.

	02 - February 6, 2018 EWSWA Board Meeting Agenda Cover Sheet.pdf
	List of Business Page Numbers

	02 - February 6, 2018 EWSWA Board Meeting Agenda Cover Sheet.pdf
	List of Business Page Numbers




